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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of Juniper Green Sigma Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying finencial statements of Juniper Green Sigma Private Limited (“the
Company™), which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31 2023, the Statement of Profit and Loss, including
the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year then ended, and notes to the financiai statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended (“the Act”) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted
in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023, its profit including other comprehensive
income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs), as
specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the
‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements’ section of our report. We are independent
of the Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of india
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions
of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Director report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.




SR Barisoi & Co. LLP

Chertered Accountants

Responsibility of Management for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect
to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards
(Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and ‘application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and
fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concemn basis
of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material niisstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists, Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

»  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing
our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

«  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

*  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.
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Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 {*the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act , we give in the “Annexure 1" a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a)

(b)

©

(d)

)

®

()

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books;

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other Comprehensive
Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account;

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under
Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended;

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2023 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2023 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure 2” to this
report,

The provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act are not applicable to the Company for
the year ended March 31, 2023;

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position;

ii. = The Company did not have any long-term contracts as at March 31, 2023 including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.;

ili. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.
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iv. a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have been

vi.

advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources
or kind of funds) by the company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities (“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have
been received by the company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(“Funding Parties™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified
in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

c) Based on such audit procedures that were considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations
under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material misstatement.

No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Company.

As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable for the Company
only w.e.f. April 1, 2023, reporting under this clause is not applicable.

For S.R. Batliboi & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number:301003E/E300005

Partnl.:r.'

Meml;ership Number: 502243

UDIN: 23502243BGTI1VI6347
Place of Signature: New Delhi
Date: 14-07-2023
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ANNEXURE 1 REFFERED TO IN PARAGRAPH 1 UNDER THE HEADING “REPORT ON OTHER
LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS OF OUR REPORT ON EVEN DATE

Re: Juniper Green Sigma Private Limited (‘the Company”)

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the company and the books of account
and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we state

that:
D@

0 ®

M@

(@

010

(i) (a)

(ii) (b}

(i) (2)

(iif) (b)

(iii) (c)

(iii} (d)

(A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including situation and
quantitative details of Property, Plant and Equipment.

{B) The Company has not capitalized any intangible assets in the books of the Company and
accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(i}(a)(B) of the Order is not applicable to the

Company.

All Property, Plant and Equipment were physically verified by the management in Financial Year -
2020-21 in accordance with a planned programme of verifying them once in three years which is
reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets.

There is no immovable property (other than properties where the Company is the lessee and the lease
agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee), held by the Company and accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(i)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of use assets) or
intangible assets during the year ended March 31, 2023.

There are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami property
under the Prechibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder. -

The Company’s business does not require maintenance of inventories and, accordingly, the requirement
to report on clause 3(ii)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. five crores in aggregate
from banks or financial institutions during any point of time of the year on the basis of security of
current assets. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

During the year the Company has not provided loans, advances in the nature of loans, stood guarantee
or provided security to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii}(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

During the year the Company has not made investments, provided guarantees, provided security and
granted loans and advances in the nature of loans to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or
any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii){(b) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

The Company has not granted loans and advances in the nature of loans to companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)Xc) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not granted loans or advances in the nature of leans to companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(d) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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(iii) (e)

(i) ()

(iv)

4]

(v

(vii) (2)

(vii) (b)

(viii)

(ix) (a)
(ix) (b)

() ()
(ix} (d)

(ix) (e)

(ix) ()

There were no loans or advance in the nature of loan granted to companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(jii)(e) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, either repayable on demand
or without specifying any terms or period of repayment to companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(f) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

There are no loans, investments, guarantees, and security in respect of which provisions of sections 185
and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are applicable and accordingly, the requirement to report on clause
3(iv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any amounts which are
deemed to be deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Companies Act and the rules made
thereunder, to the extent applicable. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(v) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to the rules made
by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under section 148(1) of the Companies
Act, 2013, related to the generation of electricity, and are of the opinion that prima facie, the specified
accounts and records have been made and maintained. We have not, however, made a detailed
examination of the same.

The Company is regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues including
goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, cess and other statutory
dues applicable to it. Undisputed statutory dues including duty of custom, duty of excise, value added
tax, sales-tax, service tax, are not applicable to thé company. According to the information and
explanations given to us and based on audit procedures performed by us, no undisputed amounts payable
in respect of these statutory dues were outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six months
from the date they became payable.

There are no dues of goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income tax,
cess, goods and service tax and other statutory dues which have not been deposited on account of any
dispute.

The Cb:ﬁpany has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded in the books of
account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year. Accordingly,
the requirement to report on clause 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest
thereon to any lender.

The Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government
or any government authority.

Term loans were applied for the pﬁrpose for which the loans were obtained.

On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, no funds raised on short-term
basis have been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture. Accordingly, the requirement to
report on Clause 3{ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture. Accordingly, the requirement to
report on Clause 3(ix)(f} of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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(x) (@) The Company has not raised any money during the year by way of initial public offer / further public
offer (including debt instruments) hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(x) (b)) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares /fully or partially
or optionally convertible debentures during the year under audit and hence, the requirement to report on
clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xi) (a) No fraud by the Company or no fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

(xi) (b) During the year, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 has been
filed by cost auditor/ secretarial auditor or by us in Form ADT — 4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

(xi){c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by the Company
during the year,

(xii) (a) The Compeny is not a nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. Therefore, the
requirement to report on clause 3(xii)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xii} (b) The Company is not a nidhi company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. Therefore, the
requirement to report on clause 3(xii)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xii) (c¢) The Company is not a nidhi company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. Therefore, the
requirement to report on clause 3(xii)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xiiij}y Transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where
applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, as required by the
applicable accounting standards. The provisions of section 177 are not applicable to the Company and
accordingly the requirements to report under clause 3(xiii) of the Order insofar as it relates to section 177
of the Act is not applicable to the Company.

(xiv) (a) The Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business

(xiv) (b) The internal audit reports of the Company issued till the date of the audit report, for the period under
audit have been considered by us.

{xv)  The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with
its directors and hence requirement to report on clause 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the

Company.

(xvi) (a) The provisions of section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934) are not applicable to
the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause (xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

(xvi) (b) The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities without
obtained a valid Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934.

{xvi) (c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the regulations made by Reserve Bank of
India. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(xvi) (d) There are no other Companies part of the Group, hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xvii) The Company has not incurred cash losses during the year and in the immediately preceding financial
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{xviii)

(xix)

(xx) (a)

(xx) (b}

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly requirement to
report on Clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in note 43 to the financial statements, ageing and expected
dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information
accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans
and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our
attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report
that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when
they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not
an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the
facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all
liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the
Company as and when they fall due.

There are no unspent-amounts in respect of projects other than ongoing projects, that are required to be
transferred to a fund specified in Schedule VII of the Companies Act (the Act), in compliance with
second proviso to sub section 5 of section 135 of the Act. .

There are no unspent amounts in respect of ongoing projects, that are required to be transferred to a
special account in compliance of provision of sub section (6) of section 135 of Companies Act. This
matter has been disclosed in note 29 to the financial statements.

(xxi)  The company does not have any subsidiaries, associates, joint ventures. Accordingly, the requirement to

For S8.R.

report on clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable to the conipany.

Batliboi & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

UDIN: 2
Place of

‘mbership Number: 502243

s

3502243BGTIVI6347
Signature: New Delhi

Date: 14-07-2023
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ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF JUNIPER GREEN SIGMA PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 ("the Act")

We have audited the Internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Juniper Green Sigma
Private Limited ("the Company") as of March 31, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements
of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining intemal financial controls based on
the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute- of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company's policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies
Act, 2013.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to these
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing as
specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an aundit of internal
financial controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial conirols with reference to these financial
statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls with reference to these financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls with reference to these financial statements included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls with reference to these financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists,
and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements,

Mezrning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to these Financial Statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to these financial statements is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial
control with reference to these financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of
the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principies, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and
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unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to these Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements;
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due
to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls with reference to these financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control with reference to these financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to
these financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants

of India.

For S.R, Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAIl Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

Artner
Membership Number: 502243
UDIN: 23502243BGTIV16347
Place of Signature: New Dethi
Date: 14-07-2023




JUNIPER GREEN SIGMA PRIVATE LIMITED

Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023
(All amounis are stated in ¥ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
As at Asat
Particulars Netes March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 44,469.35 46,460.10
Right-of-use agsets 3 3,712.52 3,866.70
Financial Asgets
Other financigl agsets 4 1,148.73 -
Nom current tax assets (net) 5 47.78 55.11
Other non current assets 6 1.44 4.00
Sub total (A) 49.179.82 S1355.91
Current assets
Financial assets
Security Deposit 7 17.40 17.40
Investments 8 918.39 150.22
Trade Receivables 9 713.26 778.53
Cash and cash equivalenis i0 76049 675.15
Other bank balances 11 5,833.67 5,042.33
Other current financial assets 12 61.13 03.78
Other current asgets 13 90.99 88.00
Sub total (B) 8.395.13 6.545.41
TOTAL ASSETS (A+B) 57,775,185 5723132
Equity
Equity share capital 14 7,205.00 7.205.00
Other equity 15 2 895.37 1.349.32
Sub total (C) = 10,100.37 R.554,32
Non-current Babilities
Deferred tax labilities (net) 16 1,399.98 875.05
Financial Kabilities
Borrowings 17 40,697.12 42,294 26
Lease Liabilities 37 3,288.75 3,161.28
Provisions 18 17.11 6.62
Sub total (D) 45.402.96 46.337.21
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 19 1,606,18 1,627.62
Trade payables 20
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 18.02 9.38
Total ontstanding dues of creditors othu-limnmimentu'pdmandsmnllenm?ﬁsel 99.96 11720
Other current financial ligbilities 21 513.58 569.73
Other current liabilities 22 21.23 8.97
Provisions 23 12.85 6.89
Sub total (E) 1.271.82 1.339.79
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES (C+D+E) 5777518 m
Basis nfpupmthnnndmmmqolllmlﬂzmtmunﬂngpoliclu 2

Theauompnnylngnnmurelnlntepnlpntoftheﬂnucm statements
As per our report of even date

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Firm registration number :- 301‘2':__1"{- 100005
Chartered Accountants y-

- .
Partnc
Membership No. 502243

Place: Gurugram
Date: july 14, 2023

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Juniper Green Sigma Private Limited
Devendra Singh Ankngh Mallk
Di Di .
DIN: 07209457 DIN: 07978604
Place: Gurugram




JUNIPER GREEN SIGMA PRIVATE LIMITED
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts are stated in ¥ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended For the year ended

Farticulars Notes Mareh 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Income
Revenue from operations 24 8,444.48 8,716.45
Other income 25 443.82 22740
Total income 5.888.30 4,943,885
Expenses
Employee benefits expense 26 252.69 193,03
Depreciation and amortization expense 27 2,158.98 2,145.30
Finance cost 28 3,845.13 5,038.15
Other expenses 29 558.35 600.29
Total expenses #,815.15 7.976.77
Profit before tax 1,073.15 967.08
Tax expense 30
Current tax expense -
Deferred tax charge 52548 410.69
Total tax expense 52548 410.69
Profit/(Loss) after tax (A) 1.547.67 556.39
Other comprehensive income
Ttems that will not be reclassified to profit and loss in subsequent periods :

Re-measurement gain on defined benefit plans 2.17) 0.24

Tax impact 0.55 (0.06)
Ttems that will be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods :

Recognition of (logses)/gains in fair value of hedging instrument (Net) - 550.74

Tax impact - 1138.61)
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax (B) i1.62) 411,31
Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax (A+B) 1.;46.&5 968.70
Earnings per equity share: [ Nominal value of share : T 10] 31
(1) Basic (%) 2,15 0.77
(2) Diluted (%) 2.15 0.77

2

Basis of preparation and summary of significant accounting policies
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date

For S.R, Batibol & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

Parine

Membership No. 502243

Place: Gurugram
Date: July 14, 2023

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Juniper Green Sigma Private Limited

N,

Devendra Singh
Director

DIN: 07209457
Place: Gurugram

Slmbll--am Prashar
Company Secretary

- M, No. - A66707

Ankpsh Malik
Director
DIN: 07978604
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JUNIPER GREEN SIGMA PRIVATE LIMITED
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31,2023
{All amounts are stated in ¥ lukli, unless otherwise stated)

For the Year Ended For the Year Ended

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31. 2022
Operating activities
Profit before tax 2,073.15 967.08
Adjustment to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows
Depreciation and amortization expense 2,158.98 2,145.30
Interest income on Fixed deposit and others (402.64) (202.15)
Profit on sale of Mutual Pund (23.34) (0.86)
Net gain on investment in Mutual Fund measured st fair value through profit and Toss (7.26) (0.48)
Foreign exchange Loss (net) 1.59 347
Interest on loan from financial institution 3,039.80 3,133.45
Interest on Buyers Credit - 72.06
Interest expenses on lease liabilities 284.33 27643
Interest on loan from holding company using effective ) 660.58
interest rate method as per IND AS 109 ’
Interest on Ioan from holding company 468,99
Other borrowing cost (hedging cost, bank guarantee and other charges) 52,01 895.63

7.645.61 7.950.51
Working capital adjustments:
(Increase) in other financial assets (1,095.90) (50.95)
{Increase) in Trade Reccivables 65.27 (15.60)
Decrease/(Increase) in other assets (0.43) 5142
Increase/(Decrease) in provisions 14,28 2,67
Increase in trade payable (8.60) 7.89
{Decrease)/Increase in other current financial liabilities 0.87) (109.91)
(Decrease)/Increase in other current liabilities 12.26 183.11)

6,631.62 7.752.92
Income tax paid (net of refund) 7.33 27.501
Net cash flow from operating activities (A) 6.638.95 7.725.42
Investing activities
Purchase of property plant end equipment including capital work in progress (159.79) (1,859.55)
Proceeds on disposal of propesty, plant and equipment - 54,60
Interest received 382.46 174.72
Investment in mutnal fund (737.57) (148.88)
Investment in bank deposits 1791.34) i£.599.77)
Net cash flow (used in) investing activities (1:3] 11.306.24) (4.678.88)
Financing activities
Proceeds from loan from financial institution - 28,400.00
Repayment of loan from firancial institution (1,627.62) (701.73)
Repayment of loan from holding company (refer note 34) - (1,132.00)
Proceeds from Buyers credit - 102.70
Repayment of Buyers credit - (27,357.05)
Change in ROU and lease liabilities (165.93) (158.76)
Other borrowing cost paid (bank gugrantee and other incidental charges) (52.01) (187.61)
Interest paid on loan(s) i3.401,81) 13,201.13
Net cash flow (used in) from financing activities (C) (5.247.37) (4,235.58)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 85.34 !1I189.04!
Cath and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 675.15 1.864.19
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year* 760.49 675.15
*Components of cash and cash equivalents (refer note 10)
Cash on hand 0.14 0.14
Balances with schedule banks;
= On current accounts 45.31 71.65
- Deposits with original maturity for less than 3 months 715.04 603.36

760,49 675.15

Total cash and cash equivalents




JUNIFER GREEN SIGMA PRIVATE LIMITED

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2023
i All amounts are stated in ¥ lukhs. unless otherwise stated)

Notes:

There are no non cash movements in financing & investing activities except those disclosed above and note 11.

Basis of preparation and summary of significant accounting policies (refer note 2)
The aceompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date

For S.R. Batlibof & Co. LLP

Firm registration aymber ;- 301003E/E300005
Chartered Accountants

Place: Gurugram
Date: July 14, 2023

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Juniper Green Sigma Private Limited

Director
DIN: 07209457
Place: Gurugram

Shubham Prashar

Company Secretary
M. No. - A66707

Ankush Malk
Director
DIN: 07978604




JUNIPER GREEN SIGMA PRIVATE LIMITED
Statement of change in equity for the year ended March 31, 2023
1 All amounts are steted in ¥ lakhs, unless otherwise stated:

(a) Equity Share Capital
Particulars Number ¥in lakhs
At Aprfl 01, 2021 7,20,50,000 7,205.00
Issue of share cayital during the vear - -
Balance at March 31, 2022 7.20.50,000 7.205.00
Issue of share capital during the vear - -
Balance at March 31, 2023 7.20.50,000 7.205.00 |
(b) Other equity
Other
Reserves and Surplus Comprehensive
Particulars Other Equity Income Total

Securities Retained Cash flow Hedge

premium Earnings Reserve
At April 01. 2021 - (74.89) 871.64 i412.13) 380.62
Profit for the year - 556.57 - 556.57
Hedging reserve. net of tax (refer note - 15} - - - 412,13 412.13
Balance at March 31, 2022 - 477.68 871.64 - 1.349.32
Profit for the yeor - 1.546.05 - - 1,546.08
Balance at March 31. 2023 - 2,023.73 871.64 - 1.89537

Basis of preparation and summary of significant accounting policles (refer note 2)
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date

For S.R. Batlibol & Co. LLP
Firm registration number :- !

Date; July 14, 2023

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Juniper Green Sigma Private Limited

I,

Devendra Singh
Director

DIN: 07209457
Place: Gumgram

Shubbam Prashar
Compartty Secretary

M. No. - A66707

Ankush Malik
Director
DIN: 07978604




Juniper Green Sigma Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2023
{All amounts are stated in ¥ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

1.

2.1

Corporate information

Juniper Green Sigma Private Limited is a private Company domiciled in India and is incorporated under the provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013, The Company is subsidiary of Juniper Green Energy Private Limited. The registered office of
the Company is located at F-9, First Floor, Manish Plaza 1, Plot No. 7, MLU, Sector 10, Dwarka, New Delhi-110075.

The Company was incorporated on March 1, 2019. The Company is primarily engaged in the business of setting up,
operating, maintaining generation, supply and sale of power in the field of renewable energy. The Company had
commissioned 120 MW Solar Power Project in the state of Gujarat (*Project”) and electricity generated from it is sold to
Gujarat Urja Vikas Nigam Limited.

The financial statements were authorized for issue in accordance with the resolution of the Board of Directors dated July
14, 2023

Basis of Preparation and Significant accounting policies

Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 read with the section 133 of the Companies Act,
2013 (as amended from time to time) and presentation requirements of Division IT of Schedule IIT to the Companies Act,
2013, (Ind AS compliant Schedule II), as applicable to the financial statements,

The financial statements have been prepared on the accrual and going concern basis in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in Indie. Further, the financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis except
for derivative financial instruments and certain financial assets and financial liabilities which have been measured at fair
value or revalued amount as expiained in relevant accounting policies.

All assets and liabilitics have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal operating cycle and
other criteria set out in Schedule ITI to the Companies Act, 2013.

The financial statements are presented in Rupees in lakhs, except when otherwise indicated.

Summary of significant accounting policies

a) Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the management to make judgments, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. Although these estimates are based on the management's best
knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in the outcomes
requiring a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities in future periods.

b} Current versus non-current classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification.

An asset is treated as current when it is:

s  Expected to be realized or intended to sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

e  Held primarily for the purpose of trading

* Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period, or

o Cash or cash equivalents unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelvemonths
after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current.




Juniper Green Sigma Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts are stated in ¥ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

A liability is treated as carrent when it is;

o  Expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

® Held primarily for the purpose of trading

¢ Dueto be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

® There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting
period

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.
Deferred tax assets/liabilities are classified as non-current assets/liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization/settlement in cash and
cash equivalents. The companies have identified twelve months as their operating cycle for classification of their current
assets and liabilities.

¢) Changes in accounting policies pursuant to amendments in Ind AS which have been fssued but not yet effective:

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023 dated
31 March 2023 to amend the following Ind AS which are effective from 01 April 2023,

(i) Definition of Accounting Estimates - Amendments to Ind AS 8

This amendment has introduced a definition of ‘accounting estimates’ and included amendments to Ind AS 8 to help entities
distinguish changes in accounting policies from changes in accounting estimates. The effective date for adoption of this
amendment is annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2023,

The amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the Company’s financial statements,

(ii) Disclosure of Accounting Policies - Amendments to Ind AS 1

This amendment requires the entities to disclose their material accounting policies rather than their significant accounting
policies, The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2023,

The Company is currently revisiting their accounting policy information disclosures to ensure consistency with the amended
requirements.

(itf) Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction - Amendments to Ind AS 12
This amendment has introduced a definition of *accounting estimates® and included amendments to Ind AS 8 to help entities
distinguish changes in accounting policies from changes in accounting estimates. The effective date for adoption of this
amendment is annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2023.

The Company is currently assessing the impact of the amendments,




Juniper Green Sigma Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts are stated in ¥ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

d) Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognized when control of the goods or services are transferred to the customer
at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or
services, The Company has generally concluded that it is the principal in its revenue arrangements, becanse it typically
controls the goods or services before transferring them to the customer.

Revenue is measured based on transaction price, which is the consideration, adjusted for discounts and other incentives, if
any, as specified in the contract with the customer. Revenue also excludes taxes or other amounts collected form customers.

-  Sale of Power: The Company’s revenue from sale of electricity generally includes one performance obligation. The
revenue from supply of power is recognized at point in time when electricity is transferred to the customer i.e. on the
supply of units generated from the plant to the grid. The revenue is recognized at the agreed tariff rate as per the terms
of the Power Purchase Agreements ("PPA") entered into with the customer.,

Revenue from operations on account of change in law events in terms of PPA’s with customers is accounted for based
on the orders/ reports of respective regulatory aunthorities and management best estimates wherever required.

-  Sale of Verified Emission Reductions (VER): Revenue from sale of VER is recognised when following conditions
have been satisfied:

i. The significant risks and rewards of ownership of the VER have been passed on to the buyer;

fi. The amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

iii. It is probable that the economic benefits associated with the sale of VER will flow to the entity; and
iv. The cost incurred or to be incurred in respect to sale of VER can be measured reliably.

- Contract Assets: A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the
customer, If the Compeny performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer pays
consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognized for the carned consideration that is conditional.

- Trade Receivable: A reccivable represents the company's right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional
(i.c., only the passage of time is required before payment of the consideration is due).

e) Property Plant and Equipment (PPE)

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost, and subsequent to recognition, property, plant and equipment other than
freehold land are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. The cost
comprises purchase price, borrowing cost if capitalization criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the
asset to its working condition for the intended use. Any trade discount and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase
price. Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate assct, as appropriate, only
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company. All other repair and
maintenance costs are recognized in statement of profit or loss as incurred.




Juniper Green Sigma Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
{All amounts are stated in ¥ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Subsequent Costs

The cost of replacing a part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the carrying amount of the item
of property, plant and equipment, if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow to
the Company and its cost can be measured reliably with the carrying amount of the replaced part getting derecognised.
The cost for day-to-day servicing of property, plant and equipment are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss as and
when incurred.

Capital work-in-progress/ Assets under construction

Capital work-in-progress represents expenditure incurred in respect of capital projects under development and is stated at
cost, net of accumulated impairment loss, if any. Cost includes land, related acquisition expenses, development/
construction costs, borrowing costs and other direct expenditure.

Depreciation
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on a straight-line basis, computed on the basis of useful lives
(as set-out below) prescribed in Schedule IT to the Act:

I Useful life
Assets category (in years)
| Plant and Equipment * a ' 25
‘Office equipment a - : 5 |
Furniture and fixtures o I
Vehicles 8
| Computers 3 |

* The useful life of plant & equipment is different from the useful life as prescribed under Part C of Schedule II of the
Companies Act, 2013. The Company, based on technical assessment made by internal expert, has estimated the useful life
of solar power project as 25 years and believes that it reflects fair approximation of the period over which the asset will
generate economic benefit and is likely to be used.

The identified components are depreciated over their useful lives; the remaining asset is depreciated over the life of the
principal asset. The assets residual values and useful lives are reviewed at each financial year end or whenever there are
indicators for impairment and adjusted prospectively.

Derecognition

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is derecognized upon disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in
the income statement when the asset is derecognized. The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of
property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

f) Intangible Assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible
assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Internally generated
intangibles, excluding capitalized development costs, are not capitalized and the related expenditure is reflected in
statement of Profit & loss in the period in which the expenditure is incurred.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are
amortized over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangibie
asset may be impaired. The amortization period and the amortization method for an intangible asset with a finite useful
life are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of
consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortization period or
method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortization expense on intangible assets
with finite lives is recognized in the statement of profit and loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of
another asset,
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Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortized, but are tested for impairment annually, either individually
or at the cash-generating unit level, The assessment of indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether the
indefinite life continues to be supportable. If not, the change in useful life from indefinite tc finite is made on a prospective
basis,

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is
derecognized.

g) Lenses

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Company. as a lessee

The company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases
of low-value assets. The company recognizes lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing
the right to use the underlying assets.

i) Right-of-use assets

The company recognizes right-cf-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying asset is
available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities
recognized, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease
incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the
estimated uscful lives of the assets are follows:

¢«  Leasehold Land 29.5 years

If owmership of the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a
purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset. The right-of-use assets are also
subject to impairment.

ii) Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognizes lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease
payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts
expected to be paid under residual velue guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase
option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Company and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease
term reflects the Company exercising the option to terminate.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement
date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made.
In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is 2 modification, a change in the lease term, a
change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine
such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

iii) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases (i.c., those leases that have a lease
term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of
low-valuc assets recognition exemption to leases of office equipment that are considered to be low value. Lease payments
on short-term leases and leases of low value assets are recognized as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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h) Borrowing costs _

Borrowing costs are capitalized as part of the cost of a qualifying asset if they are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of that asset. Capitalization of borrowing costs commences when the activities to prepare the
asset for its intended use or sale are in progress and the expenditures and borrowing costs are incurred. Borrowing costs
are capitalized until the assets are substantially completed for their intended use or sale. All other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period they occur. Borrowing cost includes interest, amortization of ancillary costs incurred in connection
with the arrangement of borrowings, other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds and
exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent they are regarded as an adjustment to the
borrowing cost.

i)  Financial Instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity

instrument of another entity.
Financial Assets

Initial Recognition and Measurement

All financial assets are recognized initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace (regular way trades) are recognized on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase or
scll the asset.

Subsequent Measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

s Debt instruments at amortized cost

¢  Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

e Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through statement of Profit & Loss (FVTPL)
o  Equity instruments, measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Debt instruments at amortized cost

A “debt instrument’ i3 measured at the amortized cost if both the following conditions are met:
8) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows and

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest (SPPI) on the principal amount cutstanding

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest
rate (EIR) method, less impairment. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included in finance income in the
Statement of Profit and Loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The
category applies to the Company’s trade receivables, unbilled revenue, other bank balances, security deposits etc.

Debt instrument at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
A ‘debt instrument’ is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:
a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial

assets, and
b) The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPL

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair
value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCT). However, the Company recognizes
interest income, impairment losses & reversals in the statement of Profit and Loss. On derecognition of the asset,
cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in OCI is reclassified from the equity to Statement of Profit and Loss.
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Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest income using the EIR method.

Debt instrument at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)
FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments, Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorization
as at amortized cost or as FVTOCIL, is classified as at FVTPL.

In addition, the Company may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortized cost or FVTOCI
criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such clection is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or
recognition inconsistency (referred to as “accounting mismatch’).

Debt instrument included within FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the statement
of profit and loss.

Derecognition
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset) is primarily derecognized
(i.e. removed from the Company’s balance sheet) when:

8) The contractual rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

b) The Company has transferred its contractuel rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the reccived cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’
arrangement; and Either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b)
the Company hes neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

‘When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the
Company continues to recognize the asset to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement in the asset. In that case,
the Company also recognizes an associated liability, The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a
basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition

of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:

¢ Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortized cost e.g. deposits, trade receivables and bank
balances

s Financial asset that are debt instruments and are measured as at FVTOCI

e  Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from transactions that
are within the scope of Ind AS 11 and Ind AS 18.

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance for trade receivables.

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognizes
impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines whether there has
been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, twelve
month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is
used, If, in the subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognizing impairment loss allowance based on
a twelve month ECL,
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Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial
instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events on a financial instrument
that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and
all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR. When estimating
the cash flows, an entity is required to consider:

¢  All contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment, extension, call and similar options) over the
expected life of the financial instrument. However, in rare cases when the expected life of the financial instrument
cannot be estimated reliably, then the entity is required to use the remaining contractual term of the financial
instrument

o  Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

As a practical expedient, the Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on portfolio of its
trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over the expected life of the trade
receivables and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognised during the period is recognised as income/ expense in the
statement of profit and loss. This amount is reflected under the head ‘other expenses’ in the statement of profit and loss.
The balance sheet presentation for financial instruments is described below:

For financial assets measured at amortised cost: ECL is presented as an allowance i.c. as an integral part of the measurement
of those assets in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write off criteria,
the Company does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount.

For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the Company combines financial instruments on the basis of
shared credit risk characteristics with the objective of facilitating an analysis that is designed to enable significant increases
in credit risk to be identified on a timely basis.

Non derivative financial liabilitles

Initial Recognition and Measurement

Financial liabilities are classificd, at initial recognition as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
borrowings, payables. All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings,
net of directly attributable transaction costs. The Company's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans
and borrowings.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial linbilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilitics
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial lisbilities are classified as held for
trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial
instruments entered into by the Company that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined
by Ind AS 109. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such at the
initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair
value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCI. These gains/ losses are not subsequently
transferred to P&L. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in
fair value of such liability are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the EIR
method, Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the EIR
amertization process.

Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an
integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included as finance costs in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an
existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the
Statement of profit or loss.

ivative fin 1i ments and hedge accoun
The Company uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward currency contracts to hedge its foreign currency risks.
Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is
entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value
is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value is negative.

The purchase contracts that meet the definition of a derivative under Ind AS 109 are recognised in the statement of profit
and loss.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives are taken directly to profit or loss, except for the
effective portion of cash flow hedges, which is recognised in OCI and later reclassified to profit or loss when the hedge
item affects profit or loss or treated as basis adjustment if a hedged forecast transaction subsequently results in the
recognition of a non-financial asset or non-financial liability

For the purpose of hedge accounting, the Company has classified its hedges into cash flow hedge i.e. hedging the exposure
to variability in cash flows that is either attributable to a particular risk associated with a recognised asset or liability or a
highly probable forecast transaction or the foreign currency risk in an unrecognised firm commitment. At the inception of
a hedge relationship, the Company formally designates and documents the hedge relationship to which the Company
wishes to apply hedge accounting and the risk management objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge.

The documentation includes identification of the hedging instrument, the hedged item, the nature of the risk being hedged,
and how the Company will assess whether the hedging relationship meets the hedge effectiveness requirements (including
the enalysis of sources of hedge ineffectiveness and how the hedge ratio is determined). A hedging relationship qualifies
for hedge accounting if it meets all of the following effectiveness requirements:

« There is ‘an economic relationship’ between the hedged item and the hedging instrument.

» The effect of credit risk does not ‘dominate the value changes® that result from that economic relationship.

» The hedge ratio of the hedging relationship is the same as that resulting from the quantity of the hedged item that the
Group actually hedges and the quantity of the hedging instrument that the Company actually uses to hedge that quantity
of hedged item.

Hedges that meet the strict criteria for hedge accounting are accounted for, as described below:

Cash Flow Hedges: The effective portion of the gain or 1oss on the hedging instrument is recognised in OCI in the effective
portion of cash flow hedges, while any ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the statement of profit and loss.
The effective portion of cash flow hedges is adjusted to the lower of the cumulstive gain or loss on the hedging instrument
and the cumulative change in fair value of the hedged item.

The Company uses forward currency contracts as hedges of its exposure to foreign currency risk in forecast transactions.
The ineffective portion relating to foreign currency contracts is recognised in statement of profit & loss. The Company
designates only the spot element of a forward contract as a hedging instrument. The changes in fair value of the forward
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element of the derivative are recognized in other comprehensive income and are accumulated in ‘Cash Flow Hedge
Reserve’,

The difference between forward and spot element at the date of designation of the hedging instrument is amortised over
the period of the hedge. Hence, in each reporting period, the amortisation amount shall be reclassified from the separate
component of equity to profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment. The accumulated balance in cash fiow hedge reserve
is transferred to property, plant and equipment on settlement. However, if hedge accounting is discontinued for the hedging
relationship that includes the changes in forward element of the hedging instrument, the net amount (i.e. including
cumulative amortisation) that has been accumulated in the separate component of equity shall be immediately reclassified
into statement of profit cr loss as a reclassification adjustment.

Reclassification of Financial instruments
The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After initial recognition,
no reclassifications are made for financial assets and financial liabilities.

0 f Fin 1 Instrum

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realize the asscts
and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

]) Foreign currencies
The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR or ¥) which is also the functional and reporting currency of

the Company.
Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the functional currency, by applying the exchange rate between the functional
currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction.

Foreign currency monetary items outstanding at the balance sheet date are converted to functional currency using the
closing rate. Non-monetary items denominated in a foreign currency which are carried at historical cost are reported using
the exchange rate at the date of the transactions.

Exchange differences arising on monetary items on settlement, or restatement as at reporting date, at rates different from
those at which they were initially recorded, are recognized in the statement of profit and loss in the year in which they
arise,

Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when
the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated
in line with the recognition of gain or loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose
fair value gain or loss is recognized in other comprehensive income or profit or loss are also recognized in other
comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).

k) Taxes
Current Income taxes

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at
the reporting date in the countries where the Company operates and generates taxable income

Current income tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside profit or loss (either in other
comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction etther in
QCI cr directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations
in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.
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Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

@  When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction
that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss.

* Inrespect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint
ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future,

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax asscts are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can
be utilised, except:

»  When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an
asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

o In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in
Joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences
will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can
be utilised

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become
probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arc measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is
realised, or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the

reporting date

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other
comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either
in OCI or directly in equity.

D) Retirement and other employee benefits

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Company has no obligation, other
than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The Company recognizes contribution payable to the provident fund
scheme as an expense, when an employee renders the related service. If the contribution payable to the scheme for service
received before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognized
a8 a liability after deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for
services received before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment
will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

Retirement benefit in the form of gratuity is a defined benefit scheme. The costs of providing benefits under the scheme
are determined on the basis of actuarial valuation at each year-end using the projected unit credit method. The actuarial
valuation is carried out for the plan using the projected unit credit method.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in
net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on
the net defined benefit liability), are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to
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retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of
e The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
e  The date that the Company recognizes related restructuring costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The Company

recognizes the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the statement of profit and loss:

s Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-routine
settlements; and

s  Net interest expense or income

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next 12 months, is treated as short-term employee benefit.
The Company measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that it expects to pay as a result of
the unused entitlement that has accumnulated at the reporting date.

The Company treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long-term employee
benefit for measurement purposes. Such long-term compensated absences are provided for based on the actuarial valuation
using the projected unit credit method at the year-end. The Company presents the leave as a current liability in the balance
sheet, to the extent it does not have an unconditional right to defer its settlement for 12 months after the reporting date.
‘Where Company has the unconditional legal and contractual right to defer the settlement for a petiod beyond 12 months,
the same is presented as non-current liability.

m) Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period aftributable to equity shareholders
(after deducting attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Partly
paid equity shares are treated as a fraction of an equity share to the extent that they are entitled to participate in dividends
relative to a fully paid equity share during the reporting period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the period is adjusted for events such as bonus issue, bonus element in a rights issue, share split and reverse share
split (consolidation of shares) that have changed the number of equity shares outstending, without a corresponding change
in resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all
dilutive potential equity shares.

n) Provisions

General

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it
is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Company expects some or all of a provision to be
reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain., The
expense relating to any provision is presented in the Statement of profit or loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects,
when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the
passage of time is recognized as a finance cost.

Provisions are reviewed &t the end of each reporting period and adjusted to reflect the eurrent best estimate. If it is no
longer probable that an outflow of resources would be required to settle the obligation, the provision is reversed.

Decommissioning liability

The Company records a provision for decommissioning costs of its solar power plants. Decommissioning costs are
provided at the present value of expected costs to settle the obligation using estimated cash flows and are recognised as
part of the cost of the particular asset. The cash flows are discounted at a current pre-tax rate that reflects the risks specific
to the decommissioning liability. The unwinding of the discount is expensed as incurred and recognised in the statement
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of profit and loss as a finance cost. The estimated future costs of decommissioning are reviewed annually and adjusted as
appropriate. Changes in the estimated future costs or in the discount rate applied are added to or deducted from the cost of
the asset.

0) Impairment of non-financial assets

The Compeny assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any such
indication exists, or when annnal impairment assessment for an asset is required, the Company makes an estimate of the
asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s fair value
less costs of disposal and its value in use and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset
or cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its
recoverable amount.

Impairment losses are recognised in the statement of profit & loss, except for assets that are previously revalued where
the revaluation was taken to other comprehensive income. In this case, the impairment is also recognised in other
comprehensive income up to the amount of any previous revaluation.

A previcusly recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine
the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. If that is the case, the carrying amount of
the asset is increased to its recoverable amount. That increase cannot exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised previously. Such reversal is recognised in
statement of comprehensive income unless the asset is measured at revalued amount, in which case the reversal is treated
as a revaluation increase.

p) Contingent Assets/linbilities

Contingent assets are not recognized. However, when realization of income is virtually certain, then the related asset is no
longer a contingent asset, and is recognized as an asset.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company or a present
obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized
because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does not recognize a contingent libility but discloses its existence
in the financial statements.

q} Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the Balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original
maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. For the purpose of the
consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above,
net of outstanding bank overdrafis as they are considered an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

r) Fair value measarement

The Company measures financial instruments such as derivates at Fair value at each balance sheet date. Fair value is the
price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly trensaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The fair valne measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell
the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

o In the principal market for the asset or liability

» In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing
the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use,
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The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable
inputs,

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within the
fair value hicrarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
as a whole:

Level 1 Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilitics

Level 2 Valuation techniques for which the lowest lovel input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly
or indirectly observable

Level 3 Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable.

At each reporting date, the management of the Company analysis the movements in the values of the assets and liabilities
which are required to be measured or reassessed as per the accounting policies of the Company.

For assets and liabilitics that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines
whether transfers have ocourred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the
nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above. This
note summarises accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given in the relevant notes.

5) Events occurring after the Balance Sheet date
Impact of events occurring after the balance sheet date that provide additional information materially effecting the

determination of the amounts relating to conditions existing at the balance sheet date are adjusted to respective assets and
liabilities. The Company does not adjust the amount recognized in its financial statements to reflect non-adjusting events
after the reporting period. The Company make disclosures in the financial statement in case of significant events.
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3. (I) Property, plant and equipment

Gross block (at Cost)
Opening as at April 01, 2021
Additions

Disposals

At Mnrch 31, 2022
Additions

Disposals

At Mareh 31, 2023

Depreciation/ Amortisation
Opening as at April 01, 2021
Charge for the year
Disposals/ Adjustments

At March 31, 2022

Charge for the year
Disposals/ Adjustments

At March 31, 2023

Net Block

At Miarch 31, 2022
At March 31, 2023

(if} Right-of-use assets™

Plant and Compauters (Including ~ Furnfivre & Office Vehicles Total
Machinery servers) Fixture Equipment
48,038.98 59.87 0.41 15.16 4741 48,161.83
1,010.69 - - 50.57 1483  1,076.09
54.60 - - 293 - 57.53
4859807 59.87 041 62.80 62.24  49.180.39
- 3.96 0.52 0.51 - 4.99
15.995,07 63.83 0.93 63.31 6224 4918538
728.58 14.58 - 0.76 230 746.22
1,942.39 17.37 0.04 10.30 690 1,977.00
237 - - 0.56 - 2,93
2.o68.60 3195 0.04 10.50 9.20  1.720.29
1,959.79 15.93 0.06 12,57 739 1,995.74
401439 47.88 0.10 23.07 1652  4.716.03
4632647 27.92 0.37 5230 £3.04  d6,40i.10
44 Mt R 15.95 0.83 40.24 45.65 4440735

Particulars Total
Opening as at April 0%, 2021 3,641.88
IAddiﬁo‘nl duriny the vear 393.12
[Jepreciation for the vear 1168.30|
Balance as at March 31. 2022 3. 850.70
Additions during the wear 9.07
[preciation for the yuar 1163.25)
Balance a8 at March 31, 2023 3,712.52 |

* Right-of-use assets: Refer Note 37 for disclosure.
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Particalars

Mareh 31,2023 March 31, 2022

4 Other non current financial asvets
Fixed Deposits len with Bank (refer note balow)
Tnterest accrued on fixed deposits
Total

Note: Lien with bank for the purposs of DSRA.

5 Nou Current tax meests (net)
Advance income-tax [net of provision for tax € Nil]
Total

§ Other non-current assets (Unsecured, consldered good unless otherwise stated)

1,139.00
9.73

I 148,78

47.718

55.11

M

Prepeid expense 144 4.00
Total L4 100,
7 Security Deposit - Current Finaucial Assct
Security Depoait 17.40 17.40
Total lw l'.l'ﬂ
§ Investments
Quoted Mutual Fands (measured at falr value through Profit and Loss)
HDFC Overnight Mutval Fund-Direct Plan - Growth Option 918.39 15022
(27,592,152 units (March 31, 2022: 4,757.684 units)]
Total 91!;2 lﬂl
Aggregate book value and matket value of umquoted lnvestments - -
Aggrogate market valus of Quoted investments 913.39 150.22
Agpregate amount of impairment in value of vestments - -
9 Trade Recelvables
Trade receivables considered good - Secored
Trade receivables considered good - Unsecured 71326 778.53
Total T R— TN
Break-up for security detatls:
Secured, considered good - -
Unsecured, considered good 713.26 778.53
Trade recsivable - Credit impatred - -
Total 71326 'HE
Impairment Allowsnee { Allowance for expected eredit loss)
Unsecured, considered good - -
Trade recetvable - Credit impaired - -
Total Trade receivables Z1338 M
Trade receivables arc non interest bearing and are generally on terms of 0 to 30 days.
Trade Receivables Ageing Schedule
As at 31 March 2021
. Dhatstanding for felliswing periods from due date of jinvmeni
Particalars Unbilled  Correntbut Lessthan6 6 months — . More than
Hecedvilsles minf Phue Munths 1 vear 1-2 years 2-3 years i wears Total
Undigputed Trade Receivables — considered good 713.26 - - - - 713.26
Undisputed Trade Reccivables — which have significant
Increass in credit risk " " B B -
Undispated Trade receivable — credit impaired - - - - -
Disputed Trade receivables - comsidered good - - - - - -
Disputed Trade receivables — which have significant increass in
credit risk B B B
Disputed Trade receivabies — credit impaired - - - - -
Total 11336 - - - - - = ri k) H
As at 31 Marek 2517
Chirstunding for falluwing poriods from due date of pryment
Particnlars Unbilled Courrentbnt Lessthan6 & months— More than
Keceivahlon _not [ye Alonths 1 yienr 1-2 years 33 years 3 vears Total
Undisputed Trade Receivables — considered good 778.53 - - - - 778.53
Undisputed Trade Receivables - which have significant
increase in cedit risk " " - i B
Undisputed Trade receivable — credit impaired - - - - -
Disputed Trade receivables - considered good - - - - -
Disparted Trade receivables — which have significant increase in
credit risk " - - - .
Disputed Trade receivablos — credit impaired - - - - - . -
Total 1TH53 - - - - - TTH.EN
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March 31,2023 Moarch 31, 2022

Particulars
10 Cash and cash equivaleats
Cash in hand 0.14 0.14
Balancea with banks: .
- On cmrrent acconnts 4531 71.65
- Fixed Deposits with original maturity for less than 3 months 715.04 603.36
Total 16040 53,
11 Other bank balances
- Balances held as margin monsy (refer note below) - 4.981,12
- Fixed Deposits® 5.833.67 61.21
Total e ___spa3
*The deposits maintained by the Company with bank comprise of time deposits, which can be witidrawn by the Commpany at any point without prior notice or penalty on the principal
Net debt reconciliation
This section sets out analysis of net debt and the movement in net debt for each of the period presented
Net debt sz on 31 March 2023
Commi / Fair value
Particalars Opeming CuhFlows  Adjustment orocen pow; March 31,2023
durisg the year Flow)
- Dthers
Non current - Borrowings (including cumrent maturities) 43,921.88 {1,627.62) 9.04 42,303.30
Lease linhilitiea 316128 1165.93 9.07 284.33 388.75
Total (A) YT FT T T M e 55905,
Less:
Cash and cash equivalents (675.15) (85.34) - - (760.49)
Investment in Mutual Fond 1 150,221 1760.911 - 11,261 118,391
Net cash & cash equivalent (B) (82537 84625) O
Net Debt (A- B) 46,257.79 (2,639.80) 9.07 286.11 43913.17
Net debt as on 31 March 2022
Commitment / ﬂ::: ent (Oth
Particulars Opening CashFlows  Adjustment March 31, 2022
than Cash Flow) /
during the year Chthers
Non cirrent - Borrowings (incloding current maturities) 16,806.35 26,566.27 549.26 43.921.88
Current - Borrowings 25,970.35 (27,254.35) 1,284.00 -
Laase Babilitics 261049 | 158. 701 393.12 276.43 3.161.28
Total () LA (4ch0 300 24w 8IS
Less:
Cash and cash equivalents (1,864.19) 1,189.04 - - {675.15)
Investment in Murtual Fund - (149,74 - 11idd) 115022
Net cush & cath squivalent (B) N K E— 049 ___ @syn)
Net Debt (A-B) 43,563.00 19246 39312 2,10921 46,251,719
12 Other current financial sesets
(Unsecured, eonsidered good nnless otherwise stated)
Inferest acoraed on Bank deposits 50.50 40.13
Interest accrned on security deposits 1.03 0.95
Receivable from related parties (refer note 34) 9.60 52,70
Total 6113 3378
13 Other corrent assts
(Unsecured, considersd good unless otherwise stated)
Prepaid expenses 84.47 73.35
Other Advances (including advance to emplayees) 6.12 14.50
Other taxes recelvable 0.40 0.15
Total — 208 0,
//{_,.r"'[::_""\-\._
F __,..-"" i "‘\_ \
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JUNIPER GREEN SIGMA PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
{All amounts are stated in ¥ lukhs unless otherwise stated

14, Equity Share Capital

Particular

March 31. 2023  March 31. 2022

Authorised share capital:

Equity share capital
73,000,000 (March 31, 2022: 73,000,000) equity shares of Rs.10/- each

Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up share capital:
72,050,000 (March 31, 2022: 72,050,000) equity shares of Rs.10/- each

A. Reconcilintion of Ne. of Equity Shares

Issued, subseribed and fully paid-up share capital
At Apri1 01, 2021

Issued during the year

At March 31, 2022

Issned during the year

At March 31, 2023

B. Terms/Rights sttached to shares
JTermu/Rights attached to equitv shares

7,300.00 7,300.00

7:300.00 7,300.00

7,205.00 7,205.00
M
No. of shares Amount
7,20,50,000 7,205.00
7,20,50,000 7,205.00

e - -1 §

‘The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par valuc of Re.10/- per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. In the event of liquidation of
the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in

proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

C. Shares held by holiding company
Out of =uity shares issued |y the Comjuny, shares held by its tiolding compiny are as below:

Particulars

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

72,050,000 (March 31, 2022; 72,050,000) equity shares of Rs.10/- each held by Juniper Gireen Energy Private Limited,

the holding company and its nominee

D. Details of sharcholders iiulding: more than 5% shares

7,205.00 7,205.00

Name of the sharcholder

Number of shares

Percentage of  Number of shares  Percentage of

held Holdlng bl Holdtny

Equity shares of Rs 10 each fully paid
Juniper Green Encrgy Private Limited, the holding company and its
nominee

March31. 2023  March 31. 2023  March 3i, 2022 March 31. 2022

7,20,50,000 100.00% 7.20,50,000 100.00%

As per records of the Company, including its register of shareholdera/members and other decleration received from shareholders regarding beneficial interest, the above sharcholding

represent both legal and beneficial ownership of shares.

E. Details of Equity shares held by promoters
Ag at March 31, 2023

Promoter Name No. of sharesatthe Changeduring  No. of shares at % of Total % change

beginning of the the year the end of the year Shares during the year
viar

Juniper Green Energy Private Limited end its nominee 7,20,50,000 - 7.20,50,000 100.00% -

As at March 31, 2022

Promoter Name No.ofshares at the Changeduoring  No. of shares at % of Total % change
beginning of the the year the ead of the year Shares during the year

yeal

Juniper Green Energy Private Limited and its nominee 7,20,50,000 - 7,20,50,000 100.00%

15, Other Equity March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Retained earnings

(n) Statement of profit and loss

Opening 477.68 (78.89)

Add : Net Profit / (logs) for the year 1,546.05 556.57

Net surplus / (deficlt) in statement of profit and loss 2,023.73 477,68

(b) OCI reserve

Opening - (412.13)

Reversal of cash flow hedge reserves, net of tax - 412.13

Total N =

(c) Equity component as per Ind AS 109 0

Opening R\ 87164 87164

Add: Adjustment on sccount of equity component as per Ind AS 109 \o) - -

Total J | §71.64 871.64

=59 A
Total Other Equity (aHbc) N Y 2,895.37 1,349.32




JUNIPER GREEN SIGMA PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

(All amounts are stated in ¥ luklix unless otherwise stated |

16. Deferred tax Hability / (asset) (net)

() Components of Deferred tax liability / (asset) (net) March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Deferred tax lability:
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 7.415.07 5,410.09
DTL on equity component as per Ind AS 109 293.16 293.16
Right to use assats 934.37 973.17
EIR Adjustment of Borrowings 35.83 38.10
Fair vale of investment and financial instruments at amortised cost 1.83 0.12
Gross deferred tax Hability (A) 8.680.26 6,714.64
Deferred tax asset:
Provision for employee benefits 510 2,01
Lease Liability 770.04 737.92
Prepayment of Land Lease 2248 26.59
Unabsorbed depreciation* 6.482.66 5.073.07
Gross deferred tax asset (B) 7.280.28 5,4319.59
Net Deferred tax Hability / (assets) (A-B) 9.98 875.05
(b) Reconciliation of deferred tax linbility / (assets) : March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Opening balance 875.05 325.69
Tax (income)/expense during the year recognised in statement profit and loss 525.48 410.69
Tax (income)/expense during the year recognised in OCI 10,551 138.67
Closing balance as at 31 March 2023 1.399.U8 875.05
(c) Movement In deferred tax liability / (nesets)
Movement in deferred Habllliy / (assets) for current vear ended March 31, 2023 i# in lakhs|
April1, 2022 | Recognisedin | Recogmisedin | March 31, 2023
Particulars 0CI profit and loss
Liability
Property, plant and equipment- depreciation 5,410,09 - 2,004.98 7.415.07
Right to use assets 973.17 - (38.80) 934.37
Equity component ag per Ind AS 109 293.16 - - 293,16
EIR Adjustment of Botrowings 38.10 - 227 35.83
Fair vale of investment and financial ingtruments at amortised cost 0.12 - 1.71 1.83
f,'714.64 - 1,965.62 8,680.26
Assets
Provision for employes benefits 2.01 0.55 2.54 5.10
Lease Liability 737.92 - 12.12 770.04
Prepayment of Land Lease 26,59 - {4.11) 22.48
Unabsorbed (l¢preciation® 5073.07 - 1.409.59 6.182.66
5.819.59 0.55 1.440,14 7.280.28
Net Deferred tax Hability / (assets) 875.05 (1.55) 525.48 1.199.98
o
\ 2\ e



JUNIPER GREEN SIGMA PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

(All amounts are stated in ¥ lakhs. unless otherwise stated

Movement in deferred liability / (assets) for previous vear ended March 31. 2022 (% in lnkhs)
April1,2021 | Recognisedin | Recognisedin | March 31, 2022
Particulars 0OCI profit and loss
Linbility
Property, plant and equipment- depreciation (30.82) - 5,440.91 5,410.09
Right to use assets 916.59 56.58 973.17
Equity component as per lnd AS 109 293,16 ’ 293.16
EIR Adjustment of Borrowings 10.08 28.02 38.10
Fair vale of investment and financial instraments at amortised cost . 0.12 0.12
1.189.01 - 5.525.63 . 714.64
Assets
Cash flow hedge reserve 138.61 (138.61) - -
Provision for employes benefits 1.13 (0.06) 0.94 2.01
Lease Liability 589.05 - 148.87 737.82
Prepayment of Land Lease 53.87 - (27.28) 26.59
Expenses allowed in subsequent years 0.02 - (0.02) -
Unabsorbed deprecintion® 80.64 - 4.992.43 5.073.07
863,32 (138.67) 5.114.94 £.839.59
Net Deferred tax Bahiliiy / (assets) 325.69 138.67 410.69 875.05

*The Company has wnabsorbed depreciation of INR 25757.53 Lakhs (Mach 31, 2022: INR 20156.83 Lakhs). The unabsorbed depreciation will be
nvaihbleforoﬂ'setﬁngagainltﬁlmmxablepmﬁtaofﬂwCompmy.TheCompmhurecogﬁseddefmedmum(munabso:beddqmciation)of
INR 6482.66 Lakhs (Merch 31, 2022: INR 5073.07 Lakhs) utilisation of which is dependent on future profits. The fiture taxable profits are based on
projecﬁmmadebymmgemmtmnﬁdahgﬂwpowamhueammtwiﬁpowupmm.




JUNIPER GREEN SIGMA PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(Al amounts arc stated in € lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars March 31,2023  Mareh 31, 2022
17 Borrowinga

Secured
Term Loan from Financial Institotions* 36.513.30 38.131.88
Unsecured
Lisbility component as per Ind AS 109** (refer note 34) 5,790.00 5,790.00
Amount disclosed under the head "Current Borrowings® (refer note 19) {1,606.18) (1,627.62)
Total 40,6972 4229426
Note*

18

Repregents term loan taken from Power Finance Cotporation (“PFC™) in INR specifically for the purpose of setting up 120 MW sclar power project in Gujarat which cerries interest at
8.10% and next reset on 15 March 2025. The term loan shall be repaid over a temure of 17 years in monthly installments starting from 15 January 2022 and ending on 15 December
2038. The term loan is secured by:

(i) Exclusive First Charge by way of Mortgage over:

- all the immavable properties, inchicting any leaschold rights, if any, both present and future;

- &ll tangible movable essets, inchuding moveable plant and machinery, machinary spares, equipment, tools and accessorles, firrmiture, fixtures, vehicles and all other movable assets
wherever situated, both present and fiture;

- all intangible assets including goodwill, intellectual property rights, undertaking and uncalled capital, both present and future;

- all the Current Assets, including but not limited to, book debts, operating cash flows, Receivables, commisaions, reveniues of whatsoever nature and whenever ariging, both present
and firtare;

- all aceounts including, the Trust and Retention Account and the Sub-Account(s), the DSRA, MMRA or any account created for eny reserve to be created and maintained (or any
account in substitution thereof), or any of the Project Documents or other accounts of the Borrower and all funds from time to time depoaited therein, the Receivables and all Permitted
Investments or other securities representing all amounts credited to the Trust and Retention Account, any letter of credit and other reserves of the Borrower present and future wherever

(ii) assignment (to the extent permitted under the Applicable Laws) of:

- all the rights, titles, interests, benefits, claims and demands whatsoever in the Project Documents/ Contracts (including bot not limited to Power Purchase Agreement(s)/ memorandum
of understanding, package/ construction contracts, O&M related agreements, service contracts, and all other Contracts);

- alll the rights, titles, interests, benefits, claims and demands ir, to and under all the Clearances relating to the Project;

- all the rights, titles, interests, licenses, benefits, claims and demands in the Project Documents/ Contracts (including but not limited to package/construction contracts, operation and
maintensnce contracts, land Jeasc agreements, service eontracts, other Contracts, memorandum of understanding, guarantees under the Contracts, PPA(s), any letter of credit or such
other security to be provided by the procurers of power under the terms of PPA(s)), letter of credits, guarantee, liquidated damages, performance bond and corporate guarantee provided
by any party under any of the Project Documents, excluding any bank guarantees provided to the Borrower by any party wnder any of the Coniracts; and

(iiii) pledge of 51% (fifty-one percent) of Equity Shares and Quasi Fquity, both present and future, held by the Pledgor.

(iv) an irrevocable and onconditional Corporate Guarantee from the holding company for the purpose of repayment/payment of Secured Obligations and the same shall be released
after compliance of certain conditions.

** Rerresents unsecured loan from the Holding Company which is repayable on ot before March 31, 2039. The interest equivalent to the interest rate of term loan i3 payable from
April 01, 2022 or Project Commerical Operation Date (COD') or till repayment of first installment of term loan, whichever is later. In accordance with IND AS 109, this unsecured
loan bas besn separated into Liability and equity components , Equity components has been clagsified in the Other Equity (refier note 15) and liability component in the non-current
borrowings, Interest on liability component is recognised using the effective interest method.

Provisions
Non-current

Provision for Gratuity 17.11 6.62
Total 1711 b2

Borrowings
Secured

Cumrrent maturites of long term loans 1.606.18 1627.62
Total 1,606.18 1,627.62




JUNIPER GREEN SIGMA PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to flnancial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts are stated in ¥ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

March 31,2023  March 31, 2022

Particulars

20 Trade payables
- Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 18.02 9.38
- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 99.96 11720

Total
mdepmblﬂmminmmbuﬁnzmdmnormﬂlymﬂedo-mdmm.

17.98 1

Trade Payables Ageing Schedule
As at 31 March 2023
[ for following periods from due date of payment

Particulars b Lol veas 23yeas Morethaadyears  Totl

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - 18,02 - - - 18.02

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 56.30 4223 L13 0.30 - $9.96

Disputed dues of micro enterprises and small enterpriges - - - - - -

Digputed does of creditars other than micro enterprises and small enterprises - - - - -

Total bl 028 L13 20 = L1758

As at 31 March 2022

Outstanding for folluwingz prrivds from due date of payment
Particulars Unbilled Less than 1
Payablis - 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total

Total outstanding duea of micro enterprises and small enterprises - 938 - - 9.38

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 75.65 41.09 0.46 - - 117.20

Disputed dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - - - . - -

Disputed ducs of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises - - - -

Total T3.65 4T il - - 12658
21 Other corrent financial Habllites

Pmbleﬁ:rpmchueof?mpzty,phntmdeqtﬁpment(includumk11.57hkhspawblutonﬁcmmdmnllenterpﬂs=mﬁrmte33) 39.43 67.80

Retention Money Payable (inchudes INR 126.2 lakhs paysbles to micto and smal] enterprises refer note 33) 212,61 33746

Interest abcrued but not due on Loan from holding company 104.08 .

Interest accrued but not due on term loan 13829 144.43

Payable to related parties (refer note 34) 8.05 437

Employee related liabilitics 11.12 7.28

Other liabilities - 8.39

Total 13.58 569.
22 Other corrent llabllities

Statatory dues 21.23 8.97

Total 21.23 3.97
23 Provisions

Current

Provision for compensated absences 12.83 6.88

Provision for Gratuity 0.02 0.01

Total 12.85 §.89




JUNIPER GREEN SIGMA PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
{All amounts are stated in ¥ iakhs. unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended For the year ended

Particulars March 31. 2023 March 31, 2022
24 Revenue from operations
Revenue from contracts with customers
Sale of Power 7,987.26 7,689.14
Less: Rebate and reactive cherges {101.26) (98.92)
Other operating income
Sale of Voluntary Emission Reductions (VERs) 558.48 1.126.23
Total MMAB ylus
25 Other Income
Interest income on
Fixed deposits 309.22 201.38
Income tax refund 3.18 0.01
Others 024 0.76
Profit on sale of mutual fund (net) 23.34 0.86
Net gain on investment in Mutual Fund measured at fuir value through profit and loss 7.26 0.48
Insurance claim received 7.09 -
Sale of scrap - 17.40
Miscallenous income 3.49 6.51
Total 443.82 227.40
26 Employee benefit expenses
Salaries, wages and bonus 215.06 155.00
Contribution to provident and other funds 1446 10.64
Gratuity expensges 5.80 439
Leave encashment 4.89 3.82
Staff welfare Expenses 12.48 19.18
Total 252.69 193.03
27 Depreciation and amortization expense
Depreciation of property plant and equipment (Refer note 3) 1,995.73 1,977.00
Depreciation on Right to use asseis (Refer note 3) 163.25 168.30
Total 2=__158,¢E 2,145.30
28 Finance cost
Interest on loan from financial institution 3,039.80 3,13345
Interest on Buyers Credit - 72.06
Interest on loan from holding company using effective interest rate ) 660.58
method as per IND AS 109 ’
Interest expenses on lease lisbilities 284.33 276.43
Interest on loan from holding company 468.99 -
Other borrowing cost (hedging cost, bank guarantee and other charges) 52.01 895.63
Total 3.445.13 SEI.IJE.IS
29 Other expenses
Operational Expenses 162.89 172.39
Insurance Expense 127.15 106.15
Security expenses 77.89 79.87
Rent expenses 40.84 54,04
Legal and professional expenses 46.00 48.23
Travelling and conveyance 27.93 34.65
CSR Expenditure (Note-A) 14.83 598
VER Issuance expenses 14.43 24,00
Payment to auditor (Note-B) 13.93 14.56
Rates & taxes 791 29.88
Electricity expenses 6.88 8.41
Subscription & Membership expenses 457 434
Communciation expenses 4.11 145
Housekeeping expenses 3.92 8.23
Miscellaneous expenses 2,10 230
Foreign Exchange Loss (net) 1.59 347
Printing and stationery m 0.73 048
Office expenses (7 e 0.65 1.86
Total (é,' [ 55835 60029
A ]



JUNIPER GREEN SIGMA FRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
{All amounts are stated in T l1khs. unless otherwise stated)

Particul For the year ended For the yesr ended
March 31. 2023 March 31, 2022
Note- A
Detalls of CSR expenditure
a) 'Gross amount required to be spent by the Company for the year 14.83 598
b) Amount spent in cash during the year on
i) Construction/acquisition of any asset - -
ii) On purposes other than (i) above* 20.81 -
¢) Details related to unspent cbligations:
i) Construction/acquisition of any asset - -
if) On purposes other than (i) above®* 598
Total - 5.98
*Includes ¥ 5.98 Lakhs being CSR obligation for FY 2021-22. T
*kAmount deposited in separate bank account within 30 days from the reporting date.
Amount spent under section 135(5)
Amount required | , .
Opening Balance to be spent during unt spent during Closing Balance
the year
the year #
20.81 20.81
#Inchides ¥ 5,98 Lakhs remained unspent for FY 2021-22.
Note-B
Payment to auditor comprises fee (Inclusive of GST)
Audit fee 6,68 649
In other capacity
Other services (group reporting, certification fee and others) 6.38 7.55
Reimbursement of expenses 0.87 0.52
Total 13.93 14.56_
30 Income tax expenses
{(a) Income tax expenne reported in the statement of profit or loss comprises:
Tax pertaining to earlier years - -
Deferred tax charge relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences 525.48 410.69
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss 52548 410.69
(b) Statement of Other Comprehensive Income
Net loss / (gain) on revaluation of cash flow hedges 138.61
Net loss / (gain) on remeasurement of defined benefit plans i0.55) 0.06
Total 10.55) 138.67
(c) Reconciliation of tax expenses and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s domestic tax rate :
Accounting profit before income tax 2,073.15 967.08
Applicable statutory income tax rate 25.17% 25.17%
Tax at appHeable income tax rate 521.77 243.39
Tax As per Books [refer above note 30(a)] 52548 410.69
Adjustments for :
Adjustment of tex relating to earlier years 0.59 -
Expenses not allowed under income tax act and others (4.30) 116730
Total Tax 521.77 243.39

8. The tax rate used for the year/period 2022-23 and 2021-22 is the Corporate tax rate of 25.2% payable by corporate entities in India on taxable

profits under the Indian Tax law.

b. The rate used for calculation of deferred tax is 25.2% for 2022-23 and 2021-22.




Juniper Green Sigma Private Limited
Notes to finzncial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts are stated in ¥ lakhs. unless otherwise stated)

31. Earnings Per Share (EPS):

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders by
the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

For the purpose of calculating diluted camings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders
and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential
equity shares, if any.

The following data reflects the inputs to calculation of basics and diluted EPS:

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 |
Net profit as per statement of profit and loss for calculation of basic

EPS and dilntive EPS 1,547.67 556.39
]\;VPeslghted average number of equity shares for calculating bagic/diluted 7,20,50,000 7,20,50,000
Nominal value per share (%) 10.00 10.00
Basic & Diluted earnings per share : 2.15 | 0.77 |

32. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions
The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of revenues, expenscs, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material
adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

Other disclosures relating to the Company’s exposure to risks and uncertainties includes:
» Capital management (Refer Note - 39)

* Financial risk management objectives and policies (Refer Note - 41)

* Sensitivity analyses disclosures (Refer Note - 41)

A. Judgments
In the process of applying the Company accounting policies, management has made the following judgments, which have
the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements:

Determining the lease term of contracts with renewal and termination options — Company as a lessee:

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any periods covered by an
option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any periods covered by an option to terminate the
lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised.

The Company has several lease contracts that include extension and termination options. The Company applies judgement
in evaluating whether it is reasonably certain whether or not to exercise the option to renew or terminate the lease, That is,
it considers all relevant factors that create an economic incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or termination. After
the commencement date, the Company reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event or change in circumstances
that i within its control and affects its ability to exercise or not to exercise the option to renew or to terminate (e.g.,
construction of significant leasehold improvements or significant customization to the leased asset). Refer to Note 37 for
information on potential future rental payments relating to periods following the exercise date of extension and termination
options that arc not included in the lease term.




Juniper Green Sigma Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts are stated in ¥ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

B, Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year, are described below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial
statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due
to market changes or circumstances arising beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the
assumptions when they ocour.

a) Impairment of non-financial assets

The evaluation of applicability of indicators of impairment of asscts requires assessment of scveral external and internal
factors which could result in deterioration of recoverable amount of the assets.

b) Taxes:

Recognition of deferred tax assets — The extent to which deferred tax assets ¢an be recognized is based on an assessment
of the probability of the future taxable income against which the deferred tax assets can be utilized.

Recognition of deferred tax lHability on undistributed profits — The extent to which the Holding Company can control
the timing of reversal of deferred tax liability on undistributed profits of its subsidiaries requires judgement.

) Defined benefits plan (Gratuity)

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial
valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the
future. These include the determination of the discount rate; future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the
complexity of the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these
assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

d) Fair value measurement of financial Instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on
quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the DCF model. The
inputs to thegse models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of
judgment is required in establishing fair values.

Assumptions include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions
about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.

e) Leases - Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Company cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it uses its incremental borrowing
rate (IBR) to measure lease liabilitics. The IBR is the rate of interest that the Company would have to pay to borrow over
a similar term, and with a similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset
in a gimilar economic environment. The IBR therefore reflects what the Company ‘would have to pay’, which requires
estimation when no observable rates are available. The Company estimates the IBR as ratc at which the borrowing is
availed during the year.

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year, are described below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial
statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(AIl amounts are stated in ¥ lakhs, nnless otherwise stated)

to market changes or circumstances arising beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the
assumptions when they occur.

33. The Micro and Small Enterprises have been identified by management from the available information, which has been
relied upon by the auditors. On the basis of the information and records available with the management, outstanding dues
to the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 are as follows.

Particulars March 31, 2023 | March 31. 2022 |
The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any 155.79 254.11 |
supplier es at the end of each accounting period i

| Principal amount due to micro and small entcrprises | 155.79 254.11
Interest due on above* Nil Nil
The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the MSMED Nil Nit

Act 2006 along with the amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond
the appointed duy during each accounting period

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making Nil Nil
payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the
period) but without adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act 2006.

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each Nil Nil
accounting period |
The amount of further interest remaining duc and paysble even in the | Nil Nil

succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as ebove are actually
| paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible
| expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act 2006

* The amount of principal and interest is not due to Micro and Small Enterprises vendors as per the terms of the agreement
entered into with such vendors,
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34. Related Party Transsctions
A) Name of related parties and related parties relationship

Relationship with the Company Names of Related Parties
Holding Company Juniper Green Encroy Private Limited
Fellow Subsidiary Companies Urange Gadog Wind Power Private Limited

Juniper Green India Private Limited ( Amalgamated):

Nisacra Renewable Frergy Private Limited

Juniper Green Field Private Limited

Juniper Green Three Private Limited

Juniper Green Gem Private Limited

Juniper Green Beam Private Limited

Juniper Green Stellar Private Limited

Juniper Green Cosmic Private Limited

Juniper Green Beta Private Limited

Juniper Green Transmission Private Limited

Juniver Green Kite Private Limited

Juniper Green Infinite Private Limited

Juniper Green Power Five Private Limited ( w.e.f. 5th Julv 2022)
Juniper Green Sipma Six Private Limited (w.e.f. 5th July 2022)
Juniper Green India Eight Private Limited (w.e.f. 5th July 2022)
Juniper Green Alpha Three Private Limited (w.e.f, 7th July 2022)
Juniper Green Theta Five Private Limited ( w.e.f. 7th Julv 2022)
Juniper Green Gamma One Private Limited ( w.e.f. 7th July 2022)
Juniner Green Gamma Two Private Limited ( w.e.f. 7th Julv 2022
Juniper Green Beta Six Private Limited (w.e.f. 7th July 2022)
Juniper Green ETA Five Private Limited (w.e.f. 7th July 2022)
Juniper Green Ray Two Private Limited (w.e.f. 8th Julv 2022)
Juniper Green Beam Eicht Private Limited (w.e.f. 8th July 2022)
Juniper Green Beam Six Private Limited (w.e.f. 8th Julv 2022}
Juniper Green Spark Four Private Limited ( w.e.f. 8th Julv 2022)
Juniper Green Licht Ten Private Limited ( w.e.f. 8th July 2022)
Juniper Green Ray One Private Limited ( w.e.f. 8th July 2022)
Juniper Green India Alpha Private Limited (w.e.f, 11th July 2022)
Juniper Green Spark Ten Private Limited (w.e.f. 13th Julv 2022)
Juniper Green Light Four Private Limited (w.e.f. 13th July 2022}
Juniper Green India Six Private Limited (w.e.f, 15th July 2022)
Juniper Green Sizmia Eight Private Limited (w.e.f. 19th July 2022)

Key Management Personnel | Ankush Malik Director

Devendra Singh, Director

Shubham Prashar, Company Sccrciary w.e.f. 28 Scptember 2022

Nitika Gars, Company Secretary up to 30 June 2022

| # A3 per Hon’ble NCLT order dated 08.09.2022, this Company has been merged with the Holding Company i.e. Juniper Green
Enviev Private Limited,
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B) Statement of Transactions with Related Parties

Particulars March 31,2023 | March 31,2022 |
Intercompany Loan repaid B
Juniper Green Energy Private Limited - -1 (1,132.00)
Interest Expenses on Loan .

Juniper Green Energy Private Limited [ 468.99 -
| Reimbursement of expenses

| Juniper Green Field Private Limited 9.60 | 1.74

| Juniper Green Three Private Limited - 542 | 263
Sale of assets (incl. GST amount) - _ ; ]
Juniper Green Three Private Limited - [ I - 6095 |
Nisagra Renewable Energy Private Limited | B - 9.21
Salary and other benefits B ‘

Nitika Garg 0.36 0.76
Shubham Prashar I 3.87 -

*All related party transactions are at arm’s length and normal course of business.
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C) Balances Outstanding as at Year end

Particulars

March 31, 2623 | March 31. 2022

Intercompany Loan Payvuble

Juniper Green Eneryv Private Limited

Interest on Intercompany Loan

Juniper Green Encrizv Private Limited
Receivable for sale of assets / expenses

| A
! 5.790.00 5.790.00 |

104.08 | -

- 43.49

| Juniper Green Three Private Limited
| Nisagra Renewable Energy Private Limited

- 9.21 |

Tuniper Green Ficld Private Limited

Pavable for cxpenses

Juniper Green Field Private Limited
Juniper Green Three Private Limited
Corporate Guarantee

Juniper Green Energy Private Limited

- 1.74
8.05 2.63

| 38.985.00 42.382.00

35. Commitments and Contingency

(a) Lease
Refer note 37 for lease related commitments.

(b) Capital commitments

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account (net off advances) and not provided for

amounted to Nil as on March 31, 2023 (March 31, 2022: 98.92 Lakhs).

(c) Contingent Liabilities not provided for as at March 31, 2023, are as follows: — Nil

36. Employee Benefit

(a) Defined contribution plan

The Company makes contribution towards provident fund to a defined contribution retirement benefit plan for
qualifying employees. The Company's contribution to the Employee Provident Fund is deposited with the Regional

Provident Fund Commissicner.

During the year, company has recognized the following amounts charged to profit and loss:

Particulars

~ March31,2023 |  March 31,2022 |

| Employers’ contribution to Employee’s provident Fund and other funds

| charged to profit and loss

14.46 ‘ 10.64

{(b) Defined benefit plan

Gratuity and other post-employment benefits

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has complieted five years or more of service
gets a gratuity on departure at 15 days salary (last drawn salary) for each completed year of service. These benefits
are unfunded, and Company provides for liability in its books of accounts based on the actuarial valuations,
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Risks associated with Gratuity plan provisions
The Company is exposed to number of risks in the defined benefit plans. Most significant risks pertaining to defined
benefit plans and management’s estimation of the impact of these risks are as follows:

Salary growth risk
The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of plan

participants. An increase in the salary of the plan participants will increase the plan ligbility,

Interest rate risk
A decrease in interest rate in future years will increase the plan liability.

‘Life expectancy risk

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the best estimate of mortality of
plan participants both during and at the end of the employment. An increase in the life expectancy of the plan
participants will increase the plan liability.

Withdrawals Risk
Actual withdrawals proving higher or lower than assumed withdrawals and change of withdrawal rates at subsequent

valuations can impact the plan liability.

The following tables summaries the components of net benefit expense recognized in the statement of profit and loss
account and the funded status and amounts recognized in the balance sheet.

Employee benefit expenses recognised in charged to profit and loss:

Particular March 31,2023 | March 31, 2022
| Current service cost 530 | 4.01
| Interest cost on benefit liability 050 0.38 |
| Actuarial (gain) / loss | 2.17 (0.24)
| Benefit cxpense recognized in statement of profit and loss | 580 439
Benefit expense recognized in statement of Other comprehensive 217 (0.24)
| income
Balance Sheet:
Particuler March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Present value of defined benefit oblij:ation 17.13 6.63

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:

Particular March 31,2023 | March 31, 2022

_Present value of obligation as at the beginning 6.63 4.99
Current service cost i 5.30 4.01

| Interest cost 0.50 ) 0.38

| Actuarial (gein) / loss 2.17 | (0.24) |
Others = 2.53 | 2.51)

| Present Value of Obligation as at the end | 17.13 6.63
Current Liability (Short term) [ 0.02 0.01
Non-Current Liability (Long term) 17.11 6.62
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The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity benefit obligation for the Company’s plans are shown

below:

| Particulars - | Mareh 31,2023 | March 31, 2022 |
Discount rate - l 1.53% | 7.59%

| Attrition rate _ 5.00% 5.00%

| Salary Escalation Rate | 10.00% | 10.00%

The estimates of future salary increase, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, semiority,
promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market.

These assumptions were developed by menagement with the assistance of independent actuarial appraisers. Discount
factors are determined close to each year-end by reference to government bonds of relevant economic markets and
that have terms to maturity approximating to the terms of the related obligation. Other assumptions are based on
meanegement’s historical experience.

As the Compeny does not have any plan assets, the movement of present value of defined benefit obligation and fair
value of plan assets has not been presented.

A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions are as follows:

Particulars ~ March 31, 2023 | March 31. 2022 |
1) impact of the change in discount rate _ ——

| Present value of obligation at the end of the vear |
| a) Impact due to increase of 1% (2.25) (1.04)
bi | Impact due to decrease of 1% 275 130
2) Impact of the change in salary |
Present value of obligation at the end of the vear
a) Impact due to increase of 1% 2.20 1.22
b) Impact due to decrease of 1% - i2.13) 11.01)
_3) Impact of the change in attrition rate
Present value of obl:.gaﬂon at the end of the vear |
a) Impact due to increase of 1% (0. 80 | 10.44)
b) Impact due to decrease of 1% 0.91 0.51

The sensitivity analysis above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit
obligation as a result of reasonable changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting peried.

Sensitivities due to mortality and withdrawal are not material and hence impact of change not calculated.

The following payments are expected contributions to the defined benefit plan in fature years:

Particulars March 31,2023 | March 31. 2022
 Within the next 12 months (next annual reporting period) 0.02 0.01
Between 2 and 5 years ] 0.12 0.02
Between 6 and 10 years | 1.56 0.04
| Bevond 10 vears 15.43 6.56

Welghted averageduratlonofGratmty Plan — 18.12 as on March 31, 2023 (March 31, 2022; 18. 20)
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37. Leases:
The Company has icase contracts for leaschold properties used in its operations, These lease contracts generally have

lease term of 29.5 years.

The Company has also certain leases with lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low value assets. The Company
applies the 'short term lease' and 'leases of low value assets' recognition exemptions for these leases.

2) Set out below are the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets recognised and the movements during the year:

' Particulars | Leasehold Land
Balance as at April 01, 2021 3,641.88
Addition during the year* 393.12

| Depreciation for the year (168.30)_ '

| Balance as at March 31, 2022 3,866.70

 Addition during the year 9.07

'Depreciation for the year _ (163.25)
Balance as at March 31, 2023 3,712,52

lqd.:iusummt on account of interest and inflation rate reassessment and revision on decommissioning obligation for
leaschold land.

b) Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities recognised and the movements during the year:

| Particulars ' | | March 31,2023 | March 31, 2022

Balance as at the beginning of the year - 3,161.28 2,65049

' On leases committed during the year 9.07 ;

Adjustment during the year i - 39312
 Accretion of interests / Others ' 28433 | 27643 |
Payments ’ (16593) | (158.76)

| Balance as at the end of the year 3,288.75 3,16128

Current - - .

Non-current 3,288.75 | 3,161.28 |

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in Note 41.
The effective interest rate for lease liabilities is 8.10% - 11.08% with maturity in year 2052,

As part of the identification and measurement of assets and liabilitics for the commissioned 120 MW solar project in
Gujarat, the Company has recognised a provision amounting to INR 1,095.16 lakhs (March 31, 2022: INR 1,013.10 lakhs)
for decommissioning obligations associated with projects constructed on leased land. In determining the fair value of the
provision, assumptions and estimates are made in relation to discount rates, inflation, the expected cost to dismantle and
remove the plant from the site and the expected timing of those costs. The provision as at March 31, 2023 was INR 1,095.16
lakhs (March 31, 2022: INR 1,013.10 lakhs). The Company estimates that the costs would be realised in 25 years’ time
upon the expiration of the lease and PPA’s term. The provision is based upon current cost estimates and has been
determined on a discounted basis by using incremental rate of long borrowing and rate of inflation basis on industry
practice. The timing and amount of future expenditures are reviewed annually, together with rate of inflation for escalation
of current cost estimates and the interest rate used in discounting the cash flows.
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¢) The following are the amounts recognised in the statement of profit and loss:

Particulars o | March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Depreciation of right-of-use assets — 163.25 . 1f3-§°__
Interest expense on lease liabilities 284.33 | 27643 |
Expenses related to short term leases | 58.58 81.94
Expenses relating to leases of Low value assets | 1.28 1.01 !
507.44 527.68

| Total amount recognised in the profit or loss for the vear

Total Company's total cash outflow for leases (including for short term and leases of low value assets) for the year ended
March 31, 2023 is INR 225.79 lakhs (March 31, 2022; INR 241.71 lakhs).

38. Operating Segment:
The Company is having one reportable segment i.e., renewable energy hence disclosure requirement of the standard is not
applicable.

39. Capital management
For the purpose of capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, and all other equity reserves attributable to
the equity holders of the parent. The primary objective of the Company capital management is to maximize the shareholder
value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the
requirements of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The Company monitors capital using a gearing
ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The Company includes within net debt, loans and borrowings,
trade and other payables, less cash and cash equivalents,

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31. 2022 |
Borrowings | 42,303.30 | 43,921.88
Add: Trade payables | 117.98 | 126.58 |
Add: Other current financial liabilities | 513.58 | 569.73
Less: Cash and cash cquivalents 760.49 | 675.15
Net debts (A) 42.174.37 43.943.04
Shareholders’ Funds (B) 10.100.37 8.554.32
Capital and net debt (C=A+B) 52.274.74 5249736
Gearing ratio (%) (D=A/C) 80.68% 83.71%

In order the achieve this overall objective, the capital menagement of the Company, amongst other things, aims to ensure
that they meet financials convents attached to interest -bearing loans and borrowings that define the capital structure
requirements.
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40. Fair value and Fair Value hierarchy

8. Fair value
The following table shows the comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair value of Company’s financial assets,
other than those with carrying amount that are reasonable approximations of fair values:

| Carrying | g valne | CNTIIE | g coiue
Particulars Value Value =
Mareh 31, March 31, March 31, March 31,
2023 2023 2022 2022
}ﬂNANCI;AL ASSETS
| Financial assets measured at amortised cost |
| Other non current financial assets 1.148.73 1.148.73 - - -
Financial assets measured at fair value through
|_profit and loss
‘lnvestment in Mutual Fund - Quoted 918.39 918.39 150.22 150.22
| FINANCIAL LIABILITIES ot
Financial liabilitles measured at amortised cost | |
Borrowings 42.303.30 42.303.30 43.921.88 | 43,921.88

The management assessed that cash and cash equi;ialents, ‘other bank balances, other current financial assets, trade
payables, and other current financial liabilities except Forward Contract Payable, paid approximate their carrying amounts
largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.

The fair value of financials assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instruments could be exchange in
@ current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The following method and
assumptions were used to estimate the fair value:

Quoted investment in mutual fund - The fair values of the mutual funds are derived from quoted market prices in active

markets.
Other-The fair value of remaining financial instruments is determined by using discounted cash flow model.

Derivative Liabilities / Assets- For hedge related effectiveness review and related valuation, details are presented in note
42,

b. Fair Value hierarchy

The judgement and estimates made in determining the fair value of the financial instruments that are (&) recognized at fair
value and (b) measured at amortized cost and for which fair value are disclosed in the financial statements. To provide an
indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Company has classified its financial
instruments into the three levels prescribed under accounting standard. An explanation of each level follows under the
table.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statement are categorized with in the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
a whole:

Level 1 Quoted (unadjusted) market price in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level2 Valuation technique for which the lowest level input that significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable
Level 3 Valuation technique for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable
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Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets / iabilities as on March 31,2023

Date of | Igi“e:ute:l Significant | Significant |
Particulars Total observable | umobservable
Valuation active inputs inputs
markets | :
_ (Levell) | (Level2) | (Level3d)
FINANCIAL ASSETS B
Assets for which fair values are
_disclosed 1 I _ |
| Other non current financial assets | March 31. 2023 | 1.148.73 - 1,148.73 - |
Financial assets measured at fair
value through profit and loss |
Investment in mutoal fand - n\prns, 2003 | 91839 918.39 - -
| quoted | el | i .
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Liabilities for which fair valnes
are disclosed | |
' Borrowings March 31, 2023 | 42,303.30 - 42.303.30 -

Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets and liability as on March 31, 2022

uoted
b Date of pQﬂm 4 | Significant | Significant
culars Valusti Total oth observable | wnobservable
uation active inputs inputs
= markets :
. (Level1) = (Level2) (Level 3)
FINANCIAL ASSETS
Assets for which fair values are
disclosed i = ]
Other non current financial assets | March 31, 2022 - - | - -
Financial assets measured at fair
. value through profit and loss -
lovestment I mutual fund | nornsn, 2022 | 150.22 150.22 . -
quoted | 1
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Liabilities for which fair values
are disclosed |
| Borrowings B | March 31, 2022 | 43,921.88 - 43.921.88 | -

41. Financial risk management objective and policies

The Company principal financial liabilities comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other payables. The main purpose
of these financial liabilities is to support the Company operations. The Company principal financial assets comprise, cash
and bank balance, other receivables that derive directly from its operations.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk, The Company’s senior management oversees the
management of these risks, The Company’s senior management is supported by a financial risk committee that advises on
financial risks and the appropriate financial risk governance framework for the Company. The financiel risk committee
provides assurance to the Company’s senior management that the Company’s financial risk activities are governed by
appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the
Company’s policies and risk objectives. It is the Company’s policy that no trading in derivatives for speculative purposes
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may be undertaken. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which are
summarized below,

() Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract,

leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from their opersting activities (primarily trade
receivables) and from its financing activities, including deposits with banks and other financial instruments.

The Company assesses and manages credit risk of financial assets based on following categories arrived on the basis of
assumptions, inputs and factors specific to the class of financial assets. Low credit risk - Investments, loans, trade
receivables and other financial assets. Moderate credit risk / High credit risk - Loans and other financial assets. None of
the Company’s cash equivalents, including time deposits with banks, are past due or impaired. Provision for expected
credit loss is based on 12 month expected credit loss/life-time expected credit loss.

Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents and other bank balances is limited as the Company generally invests in deposits
with financial institutions with high credit ratings assigned by credit rating agencies. Investments primarily include
investment in fixed deposits.

The maximum exposure to credit risks is represented by the total carrying amount of these financial assets in the Balance
Sheet

| Particulars ' | March 31, 2023 March 31,2022 |
= Securitv deposits - 17.40 1740 |
- Investments 918.39 | 150.22 |
- Other current financial assets 61.13 | 93.78

| - Trade receivables i 713.26 | 778.53 |

The Company uses expected credit loss model to assess the impairment loss or gain. The Company uses a provision matrix
to compute the expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables.

(ii) Liquidity risk .

The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves and banking facilitics, by continuously monitoring
forecast and actual cash flows and by matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities for the Company.
The Company has established an appropriate liquidity risk management framework for it’s short-term, medium term and
long-term funding requirement.

Exposure to liquidity risk
The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date. The contractual cash
flow amounts are gross and undiscounted, and includes interest accrued but not due on borrowings.

Financial Uabilities:
. . Contractual cash flows
March 31, 2023 Carrying On Less than Between More than
amount Demand one year one and five years Total
| | ! five viars |
Borrowings™ 42.303.30 | - | 4.524.13 17.795.81 | 40.500.63 62.820.57
Lease Liability | 3.288.75 - 392.89 802.52 | 11,703.07 12.898.48
_Trade pavables [ 117.98 - 117.98 - - 117.98
Other current financial 513.58 - 513.58 - - 513.58
lighilities |
Total ' 46.223.61 - 5,548.58 | 18.598.33 | 52.203.70 76.350.61 |
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* This includes Interest payable amount.

. Contractual cash flows
March 31, 2022 Carrylng On Lessthan | DOF™*eR | ppore than
amount Demand one year ne and five years Total

. y o | five vears S |

Borrowings* 43,921.88 - 5.133.52 19.801.46 56.312.95 81.247.93

Lease Liabilit, 3.161.28 - 379.37 790.08__[ 11.889.89 |  13.059.34 |

Trade pavables - 126.58 - 126.58 - =] 126.58

Other current financial 569.73 - 569.73 - - 569.73
lisbilities | 1 o | |

Total 4777947 | - 6.209.20 | 20.591.5_4_1 68.202.84 |  95,003.58

* This includes Interest payable amount.

(iif) Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in

market prices, Market risk comprises two types of rigk: interest rate risk and currency risk. Financial instruments affected
by market risk include borrowings and bank deposits.

(a) Foreign Currency Risk

The Company has international transactions and is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from foreign currency
transactions. Foreign exchange risk arises from recognized assets and liabilities denominated in a currency that is not the
Company’s functional currency.

Foreign currency risk exposare:
Particular | Cwrrency | March 31,2023 | March 31,2022 |
(INR) | (INR) |
Finaneial Habilities | | -
|_Retention money payvable UsD | 18.87 34.80 |
Sensitivity

The sensitivity of profit or loss to changes in the exchange rates arises mainly from foreign currency denominated financial
instruments.

| Particular | March 31,2023 | March 31, 2022 |
Increase by 5% 0.4 | 1.74

| Decrease by 5% | (0.94) | (1.74)

(b) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuste because of changes
in market interest rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the
Company’s long-term obligation with floating interest rate.

Exposure to interest rate risk

The Company’s interest rate risk arises majorly from the borrowings carrying variable rate of interest. This obligation
exposes the Company to cash flow interest rate risk. The exposure of the Company’s borrowing to interest rate changes as
reported to the management at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Variable-rate instruments [ March 31,2023 | March 31,2022 |

Loan and bank borrow ings* _ - | 38.131.88 |
| Total ' - | 38,131.88
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Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on that portion of loans
and borrowings affected. With all other variables held constant, the Company’s profit before tax is affected through the
impact on floating rate borrowings, as follows:

Particulars | March 31,2023 | March 31,2022 |
Increase by 0.5%* ' - 160.85 |
| Decrease by 0.5%* - | (160.85) |

*The interest rate has been fixed @ 8.1% for Three years hence the company has no interest rate risk on it's loans and
borrowings.

(c) Price Risk

The Company's exposure to price risk arises from investments held and classified as FVTPL. To manage the price risk
arising from investments in mutual funds, the Company diversifies its portfolio of assets.

Price risk exposure;
| Particular ) | March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
| Financial assets measured at fair value through profit & Loss

Investment in Mutual fund 918.39 150.22 |
Sensitivity analysis
Profit or loss and equity is sensitive to higher/lower prices of instruments on the Company’s profit for the year:
| Particulars March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2022 |
| Increase by 5% 4592 7.51
| Decrease by 5% 45.92) | 17.51)

42, Cash flow hedges
A. Risk management strategy

The Company uses hedging instruments as part of its management of foreign currency risk, The risk being hedged is
the risk of potential gain/loss due to fluctuation in foreign currency rates. The use of forward contracts is covered by
the Company’s overall strategy. The Company does not use forward for speculative purposes. As per the strategy of
the Company, import of capital goods shall be covered by hedge, considering the risks associated with the hedging of
such capital goods, which effectively fixes the liability of such imports and mitigates or eliminate the financial and
market risks in India (the place of business of the Company),

Hedge ratio is the relationship between the quantity of the hedging instrument and the quantity of the hedged item. In
the given case, total payment expected for import of modules are hedged under the forward contracts with the
approximately equivalent amount and at the same dates. Hence hedge is considered highly effective on the basis of
effectivencss test of purchase of capital assets and comresponding forward contact taken for final payment.

B. Other hedge related disclosures

There have been no transactions during the year ended 31 March 2023.
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43. Ratio analysis

Ratlo Numerator Denominator 31-Mar- | 31-Mar- % Reason for variance
23 22 Change
. . o, | Increase in current
Current Ratio Current Assets Current Liabilities 3.70 .2.93 26.31% assets
. Shareholder’s Equity
pov- By | “wial Dbt Current ";‘; (Including Loan from |  2.30 266 | (13.56%) | Refer Note— I below
ot wing holding company}
Earnings for debt service D'ebt R
Debt Service | .. Net profit after tax + {excluding non-::sshf
; Deferred tax + Finance 1.71 1.70 0.85%
Coverage ratio . L expenses) + Due
cost + Depreciation and Instalments as per
Amortisation P
Debt arrangcmients
Average
Return on Equity Sharecholder’s Equity o o .
ratio Net Profits after taxes (inctuding I from 10.24% 3.95% | 159.36% | Increase in Profits
| holding company
Inventory .
Turnover ratio Cost of goods sold Average Inventory Not Applicabie
Trade Receivable | Total Revenue from | Average Trade 1132 11.31 0.11%
Tumnover Ratio Contract with customers | Receivable ' ’ '
Trade  Payable g ) Average Trade
Tumover Ratio Total other expenses Payables 4,57 4.89 (6.72%)
. - Working capital = .
e | S R | Coren” s | 138 | 53 [ a7 | e i cumen
Current liabilities :
NetProfitratio | Net Profit after taxes | 10 Revemue ffom | yg350. | 380 | 187.12% | Increase in Profits
operations
. . Capital Employed =
. Earnings before interest .
Return on Capital * | Tangible Net Worth +
Employed financ?) cost and taxes | Debt + Deferred tax 12.33% 1263% | (2.38%)
— ( liability
Return on | _. .
Tnvestment Finance Income Investment Not Applicable

Note 1 — Debt-Equity ratio as defined in financing documents is 2.81 (March 31, 2022: 2.93).
Debt — Project Loan (Current and Non-current Borrowings)
Equ:ty Paid up Share Capital and Unsécured loan from Holding Company for project.




Juniper Green Sigma Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts are stated in ¥ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

44. Authorization of financial statements for issue
The financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023, were authorized for issue in accordance with a resolution

of the Directors on July 14, 2023

As per our report of even date

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
ICAI Firm Registration No.- 301003E/E300005 Juniper Green Sigma Private Limited

Chartered Accountants

M,

Devendra Singh Ankush Malik
Director Director
Membership No.: 502243 DIN 07209457 DIN 07978604
Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugram

Date: July 14, 2023

B ,/"-

Shubham Prashar
Company Secretary
M. No. - A66707




